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IN THE MATTER OF
CAPAX, INC,, ET AL.
Docket 9058. Interlocutory Order, Oct. 20, 1976

Order denying motion by all respondents except one individual that the administrative
law judge be disqualified from presiding in this proceeding.

Appearances

For the Commission: Carthon E. Aldhizer, John F. LeFevre, and Alan
D. Reffkin.

For the respondents: Robert F. Stockton, Segal & Stockton, Philadel-
phia, Penn,, for Capax, Inc., Joseph V. Defelice and Arnold Goodman.
Barbara Van Horn Colsey, Delanco, New Jersey, for Norman Bricker.

ORDER DENYING MoOTION To DISQUALIFY ADMINISTRATIVE
LAaw JUDGE

Administrative Law Judge Paul R. Teetor has certified a motion filed
by all respondents other than Norman Bricker requesting that the ALJ
be disqualified from presiding in this proceeding. The moving respon-
dents assert that two letters to the ALJ written by complaint counsel
were ex parte communications and had “the capacity to prejudice” the
ALJ against respondents or their attorneys."

We agree with the ALJ’s decision not to disqualify himself. The
letters did not constitute ex parte communications since copies were
forwarded to respondents’ counsel. Nor has there been a showing that
the law judge’s ability to conduct a fair hearing has in any way been
prejudiced. Accordingly,

It is ordered, That the aforesaid motion be, and it hereby is, denied.

Commissioner Dole not participating by reason of absence.

' According to one letter, a prospective witness had informed complaint counsel that she intended to cancel her

scheduled interview date because of threats made by a telephone caller who identified himself as a representative of
respondent Capax. The other letter complained of a questionnaire mailed to a prospective witness.
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IN THE MATTER OF
GUARDIAN LOAN COMPANY, INC.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND TRUTH IN LENDING
ACTS

Docket C-2846. Complaint, Oct. 20, 1976 — Decision, Oct. 20, 1976

Consent order requiring a Roslyn Heights, N.Y., consumer finance company, among
other things to cease violating the Truth in Lending Act by failing to disclose to
consumers, in connection with the extension of consumer eredit such information
as required by Regulation Z of the said Act. Further, respondent is required to
cease misrepresenting the terms and conditions of insurance coverage require-
ments; to display insurance information in-house; to mail insurance disclosure
letters together with cancellation forms to customers; to send customer-request-
ed refunds within a specified time; and to maintain records.

Appearances

For the Commission: Angelo M. Presti.
For the respondent: Walter C. Wallace, Stein, Mitchell'& Mezines,
Washington, D.C.

COMPLAINT

2ursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, and
the Truth in Lending Act and the regulation promulgated thereunder,
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Acts, the Federal
Trade Commission, having reason to believe that Guardian Loan
Company, Inc., a corporation, hereinafter sometimes referred to as
respondent, has violated the provisions of said Acts and implementing
regulation, and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in
respect thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its
complaint stating its charges in that respect as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Guardian Loan Company, Inc. is a
corporation organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue
of the laws of the State of New York, with its office and principal place
of business located at 2 Lambert St., Roslyn Heights, New York.

Respondent Guardian Loan Company, Inc. operates through approxi-
mately thirty (30) wholly-owned subsidiary loan offices located in the
States of New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Delaware and Connect-
icut. Respondent Guardian Loan Company, Inc. formulates and controls
the policies, acts and practices of each of the wholly-owned subsidiaries,
including the acts and practices hereinafter set forth.

PAR. 2. Respondent, by and through its various wholly-owned
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subsidiary corporations, is now, and for some time in the past has been,
engaged in consumer financing and the granting of consumer loans to
members of the public in the States of New York, New Jersey,
Pennsylvania, Delaware and Connecticut. ‘

PAR. 3. In the ordinary course and conduct of its business, as
aforesaid, respondent regularly extends consumer credit, as “consumer
credit” is defined in Regulation Z, the implementing regulation of the
Truth in Lending Act, duly promulgated by the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System.

PAR. 4. Subsequent to July 1, 1969, respondent, in the ordinary course
and conduct of its business, as aforesaid, has charged, and is now
charging, a substantial number of consumers for credit life and credit
disability insurance written in connection with consumer loans.

Typical and illustrative, but not all inclusive, of the circumstances in
which such insurance charges are incurred by consumers are the
following, which generally occur in the sequence set forth.

1. During the consumer’s initial contact with respondent, either on
the telephone or in person, respondent orally quotes a monthly
repayment figure which includes charges for credit life and credit
disability insurance.

2. Respondent automatically includes charges for credit life and
credit disability insurance on the Disclosure Statement of Loan, and,
unless the consumer specifically objects to the inclusion of the charges
for such insurance, the coverage becomes part of the credit transaction.

3. On that portion of the Disclosure Statement of Loan which
contains the statements “I desire Credit Life Insurance the cost of
which is shown above () Yes () No,” and “I desire Disability Insurance
the cost of which is shown above () Yes () No,” followed by a line for the
consumer’s signature, respondent, without the permission or authority
of the consumer, checks the “Yes” boxes and then dates and places an
“X” on the line for the borrower’s signature.

4. The Disclosure Statement of Loan, filled out as indicated above, is
presented to the consumer for two signatures, and the consumer is told
by respondent’s employees to sign next to the “X’s” respondent’s
emplovees have made. The consumer is not told the purpose of each
signature. These signatures are intended (1) to indicate the consumer’s
request for the insurance coverage, and (2) to acknowledge the
consumer’s receipt of the completed Disclosure Statement of Loan,

5. If a consumer is told the purpose of each signature mentioned in
part <4 of Paragraph Four above, the consumer is not subsequently told
whether or not credit life and credit disability insurance are-optional.

6. Respondent places the charges for credit life and credit disability
insurance in the Disclosure Statement of Loan, and these charges

223-239 0 - 77 - 41
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become part of the “amount financed,” but are not included in the
amount of the “finance charge” which “finance charge” is used in the
computation of the “annual percentage rate.”

7. If a consumer becomes aware that he has a choice about obtaining
credit life and/or credit disability insurance and specifically objects to or
questions the inclusion of the charges for such insurance, respondent
informs the customer that deletion of such charges will require it to
have all the loan papers retyped as well as drawing a new check for the
amount of the proceeds of the loan, and that this process of redoing the
papers will result in delaying the completion of the loan, sometimes by
as much as several days.

PAR. 5. By and through the acts and practices described in Paragraph
Four, and others of similar import, meaning and consequence, but not
specifically set forth herein, respondent, in a substantial number of
instances, obtains consumers’ signatures through practices which
operate, directly or indirectly, to defeat the elective language of the
insurance authorization disclosures by obscuring from consumers
knowledge about the option, by misrepresenting to consumers that their
signatures are necessary solely for the purpose of consummating the
credit transaction, and by discouraging the declination of the coverage
when it is questioned. These practices have the effect of preventing
substantial numbers of consumers from exercising their own independ-
ent, voluntary choice whether to obtain credit life and/or credit
disability insurance.

Therefore, respondent, in a substantial number of instances, induces
its customers to incur charges for credit life and credit disability
insurance without said customers making a knowing, affirmative
election to have such insurance and, thereby, respondent has failed to
obtain from each of its customers a “specific dated and separately
signed affirmative written indication of [their] desire” to obtain such
insurance, as required by Section 226.4(a)(5) of Regulation Z, despite the
existence of language to the contrary in the Disclosure Statement of
Loan.

PAR. 6. By and through the acts and practices described in Para-
graphs Four and Five hereof, respondent has failed to include the
charges for credit life and credit disability insurance in the “finance
charge” when a specific dated and separately signed affirmative written
indication of the consumer’s desire for such insurance has not been
obtained, as required by Section 226.4(a)(5) of Regulation Z, and thereby
respondent: ‘

1. Failed to compute and disclose accurately the “finance charge” as
required by Sections 226.4 and 226.8 of Regulation Z; and

2. Failed to compute and disclose the “annual percentage rate”
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accurately to the nearest quarter of one percent, as required by Sections
226.5 and 226.8 of Regulation Z.

PAR. 7. Subsequent to July 1, 1969, respondent, in the ordinary course
and conduct of its business, as aforesaid, has furnished Disclosure
Statement of Loan forms to its customers. Bv and through the use of
said forms, respondent, in many instances, failed to use the term
“amount financed” to describe the amount of credit extended as
required by Section 226.8(d)(1) of Regulation Z.

PaRr. & Pursuant to Section 103(q) of the Truth in Lending Act,
respondent’s aforesaid failures to comply with Sections 226.4, 226.5, and
226.8 of Regulation Z constitute violations of that Act and, pursuant to
Section 108 thereof, respondent has thereby violated the Federal Trade

Commission Act.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof, and the respondent having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the New York Regional Office
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and which,
if issued by the Commission, would charge respondent with violation of
the Truth in Lending Act and the regulation promulgated thereunder
and violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondent and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by the
respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid draft
of complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such complaint,
and waivers and other provisions as required by the Commission’s
Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and having
determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent has
violated the said Acts, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record for a
period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with the procedure
prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission hereby issues its
complaint, makes the following jurisdictional findings, and enters the
following order:

1. Respondent Guardian Loan Company, Inc. is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws



636 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS
Decision and Order 88 F.T.C.

of the State of New York, with its office and principal place of business
located at 2 Lambert St., Roslyn Heights, New York.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER

For purposes of this order, the following definitions of terms shall
apply:

(a) “consumer loans in open status” refers to those consumer loans in
which payments at least totaling the amount of one regular monthly
payment have been made by the borrower in the last six months.

(b) “delinquent account” refers to those accounts which are more than
30 days past due for an amount which equals the amount of one regular
monthly payment.

(¢) “net cash advance” refers to the actual amount of cash that a
borrower will receive after choosing one of the credit insurance options
available, including that option which contains no credit insurance, in
connection with his loan.

(d) “penetration rate” refers to the percentage of all loans eligible for
credit insurance on which charges for such insurance are made.

(e) “refund method” refers to an accounting method to compute
refunds of insurance premiums in connection with cancellation of
insurance coverage which method makes use of both the Rule of 78 and
a pro rata computation. As an example, the Rule of 78 would operate on
a 12-month loan as follows: The numbers 1 through 12 added together
provide the figure 78. This is the denominator. The sum of the months
expired at the date of cancellation supplies the numerator. The first
month of a 12-month loan is considered as 12 because the outstanding
balance is 12 times as large during the first month as it is for the last
month. The second month is 11, and so on, to 1. The portion of insurance
premiums which must be refunded is, for cancellation during the first
month, 78/78-12/78 or 66/78; second month 66/78-11/78 or 55/78; and so
on down to the 12th month. The numerator for a 24-month contract is
obtained by beginning with 24, instead of 12, as for a 12-month contract,
or 36 in the case of a 36-month contract or any other number denoting
the total number of months or periods in a particular contract. To the
amount of any refund due in connection with any loan as determined by
use of the Rule of 78 will be added an amount which is equal to 40
percent of the difference between said Rule of 78 amount and that
amount which would be due if said refund were to be computed on a pro
rata basis. Said pro rata amount refers to an amount which shall be at
least as great a proportion of the total insurance premiums collected by
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respondent in connection with any loan as the number of remaining
monthly payments, scheduled to follow the installment date nearest the
date of cancellation as explained below, bears to the total number of
monthly payments scheduled by the loan contract. Any cancellation
made on or before the fifteenth day following an installment date shall
be deemed to have been made on the installment date immediately
preceding the date of cancellation. Any cancellation made after the
fifteenth day following an installment date shall be deemed to have been
made on the installment date immediately following the date of
cancellation. Any borrower making cancellation on or before the
fifteenth day following consummation of the loan shall receive a refund
or credit for the full amount of insurance premiums in connection with
said loan. Cancellation for purposes of computing the amount of any
refund or credit due shall be as of the date of receipt by respondent of
the notice set forth in Attachment C of this order or as of the date of
receipt by respondent of any other communication from the borrower
under the terms of this order indicating his desire to cancel his
insurance coverage.

(f) “time of closing” refers to that period of time during which loan
documents are presented to the borrower for consummation of a loan
transaction whereby the borrower becomes obligated to make payments
to respondent to satisfy said loan.

1.

It is ordered, That respondent Guardian Loan Company, Inc, its
successors and assigns, and its officers, and respondent’s agents,
representatives and employees, directly or through any corporation,
subsidiary, division or other device, in connection with the granting of
consumer loans subject to the provisions of Regulation Z (12 CFR
§226.8) of the Truth in Lending Act (Pub. Law 90-321, 15 U.S.C. §1601,
et seq.), do forthwith cease and desist from:

1. Failing, when the charges for credit life insurance and/or credit
disability insurance are not included in the finance charge for consumer
loans: v
(a) To present to the borrower as the first document at the time of
closing, which document shall be the first document to be completed by
respondent and the first document to be signed by the borrower(s) at
the time of said closing in respondent’s loan offices, or to mail to the
borrower, who is consummating his loan through the mail, at the same
time as consummation papers are to be mailed, a separate, written,
personal insurance authorization form which sets forth clearly and
conspicuously:
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(i) the borrower has received credit approval up to a specified
amount; :

(ii) the borrower’s decision with regard to the insurance available
through respondent is not considered in granting the credit;

(iii) the purchase of credit insurance is optional and is not required by
Guardian Loan Company, Inc., in connection with the loan;

(iv) the amount of the total premium for credit life insurance and the
amount of the total premium for credit disability insurance [which, if
elected, will be deducted from the amount of the proceeds and added to
the “amount financed” J;

(v) the net cash advance options which would result from the
borrower’s election to take the loan, set forth in the following order
from left to right across the document: (1) without either credit life
insurance or credit disability insurance, (2) with credit life insurance
only, (3) with credit disability insurance only, (4) with both credit life
insurance and credit disability insurance, (5) with other available forms
of credit insurance, if applicable, except that, in any State where credit
property insurance is available alone as well as in multiple combinations
or options with other forms of credit insurance, respondent, in addition
to providing the required information for the above stated four options,
need only provide the required information for one other option if the
borrower has indicated an interest in such an option;

(vi) a signature and date line for each option set forth in (v) above for
the borrower(s) to indicate his election;

(vii) the borrower authorizes respondent on behalf of the borrower to
pay the insurance premiums to the insurance company for such personal
insurance which has been chosen.

(b) To send to mail order loan borrowers, at the same time and along
with the papers to consummate said loan, a separate written statement
containing the notice, in no less than 12 point bold type and easily
legible, which this order requires to be displayed at respondent’s loan
offices.

(¢) To make the disclosures required by subparagraph (a) above on a
separate document which contains no other printed or written material.

() To make disclosures required by subparagraphs (i), (i) and (iii)
above in not less than 12 point type. A form substantially in confor-
mance with Attachment A herein will be considered as in compliance
with the provisions of subparagraphs (a). (b) and (c) above. Respondent
shall maintain the original statement for two years following its
execution and provide the customer with an executed copy thereof.

2. Making any marks or otherwise instructing a borrower where to

sign or date the separate personal insurance authorization form
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required by subparagraph (a) above in advance of the borrower’s free
and independent choice for such insurance.

3. Misrepresenting, orally or otherwise, directly or by implication,
that credit life and/or credit disability insurance are required as a
condition of obtaining credit from respondent.

4. Discouraging, by misrepresentation, oral or otherwise, directly or
by implication, the declination of credit life and/or credit disability
insurance.

5. Representing, orally or otherwise, directly or indirectly, that the
borrower’s failure to elect credit insurance will result in a delay in
processing his loan or in his receiving the proceeds.

6. Failing to compute and disclose accurately the finance charge, as
required by Section 226.4(a)(5) and 226.8(d) of Regulation Z.

7. Failing to compute and disclose accurately the annual percentage
rate to the nearest quarter of one percent as required by Section
226.5(b) and 226.8(b) of Regulation Z.

8. Failing to use the term “amount financed” to describe the amount
of credit extended as required by Section 226.8(d)(1) of Regulation Z.

9. Failing, in any consumer loan transaction or advertisement, to
make all disclosures, in accordance with Section 226.4 and 226.5 of
Regulation Z, in the manner, form and amount required by Section
226.6, 226.8, 226.9 and 226.10 of Regulation Z.

11.

It is further ordered, That respondent display at each booth, or at or
near each desk or other location where loans are consummated, in such a
manner and in such dimensions so as to be easily viewed and read by the
borrower from his seated or other normal position in such booth or at
such desk or other location, and which shall not be in close proximity to
any other written or display material, the following notice:

NOTICE TO BORROWERS

THE PURCHASE OF CREDIT INSURANCE IS OPTIONAL AND IS NOT
REQUIRED BY THIS COMPANY IN CONNECTION WITH YOUR LOAN.
YOUR DECISION WITH REGARD TO THE INSURANCE AVAILABLE 1S
NOT CONSIDERED BY THIS COMPANY IN THE GRANTING OR DENYING
OF CREDITTO YOU. .

II1.

It is further ordered, That respondent maintain records on a State-by-
State basis (covering each State in which they do business) of the
penetration rate of (a) credit life insurance for loans; and (b) credit
disability insurance for loans. Such records shall be maintained on a
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yearly basis and submitted to the Commission each year for a period of
five years, and thereafter from time to time as the Commission may
request.

Iv.

It is further ordered, That respondent, in reporting penetration rates,
state the total number and dollar amount of loans entered into each year
which were eligible for credit insurance, stated separately for credit- hfe
insurance and credit disability insurance.

V.

It is further ordered, That within forty-five (45) days after the date
this order becomes final respondent mail to all borrowers to whom
credit life and/or credit disability insurance were sold prior to the date
this order becomes final and the premium(s) for same were not included
in the finance charge, and who did not receive death benefits or health
benefits under said insurance policies, in connection with respondent’s
consumer loans in open status on the date this order becomes final,
notwithstanding the sale or assignment of any or all of said loans to a
third party, the two notices set forth in Attachments B and C of this
order, together with a self-addressed, postpaid, return envelope.

VI

It is further ordered, That within forty-five (45) days after the date
this order becomes final respondent contact by telephone or other
means available all those borrowers who would be sent, under the terms
of this order, the notices set forth in Attachments B and C of this order
were it not for the fact that said borrowers have been extended
confidential loans by respondent under the terms of which no corre-
spondence is forwarded by mail to said borrowers, in order to advise
said borrowers of their prerogatives to cancel their insurance coverage
and receive a partial refund of the insurance premiums paid,;

Provided, however, That any obligation under Paragraphs V and VI
above shall only apply to respondent and shall not apply to: (a) any third
party to whom said loans may be or may have been sold or assigned, (b)
any offices of respondent transferred to a third party in connection with
the sale or assignment of said loans, or (¢) any of said loans sold or
assigned to a third party;

Provided further, however, That it is understood that any of said loans-
sold or assigned to a third party shall be used by respondent pursuant to
the terms of Paragraphs V and VI above solely to determine the names
of the borrowers required by it to fulfill its obligation under said
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paragraphs and the amount of each insurance premium refund which
may be required pursuant to respondent’s fulfillment of such obligation;

Provided further, however, That respondent shall not be required to
forward the two notices set forth in Attachments B and C of this order
to any borrower, or to contact any borrower who has been extended a
confidential loan, who has already received the above-mentioned
notices prior to the date this order becomes final, or who has already
been contacted by respondent with respect to cancellation of insurance
coverage prior to the date this order becomes final, and where any and
all follow-up provisions required by this order with respect to said
notices or contact, including the making of refunds or the crediting of
accounts, where applicable, have been or will be accomplished by
respondent within the time periods specified in this order;

Provided further, however, That respondent shall not be required to
forward the two notices set forth in Attachments B and C of this order
to any borrower who, for any loan consummated prior to the date this
order becomes final, received from respondent during the time of
closing of said loan the personal insurance authorization form required
by Section 1(a) of this order and where any and all requirements
connected with said form as required by this order have been
accomplished by respondent.

VII.

It is further ordered, That a record of mailing by respondent of the
notices set forth in Attachments B and C of this order be kept by
respondent and that said record be available for examination by
Commission personnel in connection with any compliance obligations
arising out of this order.

VIIL

" It is further ordered, That all telephone calls or other attempts to
advise the above-mentioned confidential loan borrowers of their
cancellation prerogatives be noted on the ledger cards of such borrow-
ers so as to legibly indicate: (1) the dates and times of such telephone
calls or other means of communication employed to make contact with
said borrowers; (2) the results of such attempts; and (3) the name or
initials of respondent’s employee making such contacts.

Respondent’s obligations under Paragraphs V and VI of this order
shall not be fulfilled until each borrower affected by said paragraphs
has received the notices, or been contacted, as specified therein;
provided however, that respondent shall be deemed to have complied
with said Paragraphs V and VI if respondent can demonstrate that it
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expended reasonable efforts, in writing or orally, to deliver such notices
or make such contact according to the terms of this order.

IX.

It is further ordered, That any and all requests for refunds of
insurance premiums under the terms of this order be made by
respondent based on the Refund Method as defined in this order and
that said refunds be made by respondent within thirty (30) days of
receipt by respondent, within the time period specified in this order, of
the notice set forth in Attachment C of this order or receipt by
respondent of any other form of communication from borrowers
indicating their desire to cancel their credit insurance coverage;

Provided, however, That respondent under Paragraph IX above shall
have the option in connection with open status but delinquent accounts
to either make refunds in accordance with the terms of this order or to
credit said accounts for the full amount of any refunds due.

X.

It is further ordered, That respondent, when crediting any delinquent
account with the full amount of any refund due following receipt of the
notice set forth in Attachment C of this order, or following contact with
any borrower under the terms of this order, credit said account within
thirty (80) days of the receipt by respondent of said notice or within
thirty (30) days of the contact by respondent whereby the borrower
indicates his desire to cancel his credit insurance coverage.

XI.

It is further ordered, That the above-mentioned credit be reflected on
the next account status statement to be sent to the borrower following
the above-mentioned crediting of his account;

Provided, however, That respondent shall not be required under
Paragraphs IX and X above to make refunds or to credit accounts with
respect to any cancellation notice, as so set forth in Attachment C of this
order, or any cancellation request, received by respondent later than
twenty-one (21) days following the post office receipt date of said
notice’s mailing by respondent or later than twenty-one (21) days from
the date that respondent otherwise notifies the borrower of his
cancellation prerogatives.

XII.

It is further ordered, That respondent deliver a copy of this order to
cease and desist to all present and future personnel of respondent at its
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general offices in Roslyn Heights, New York and in each of its
subsidiary loan offices who are engaged in the extension of consumer
loans, and that respondent secure a signed statement acknowledging
receipt of said copy of this order from each such person.

XIII1.

It is further ordered, That respondent notify the Commission within
thirty (30) days of any change in the corporate respondent which may
affect compliance obligations with regard to the extension of consumer
loans arising out of this order, such as dissolution, assignment or sale
resulting in the emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or
dissolution of subsidiaries or any other change in the corporation with
regard to the extension of consumer loans which may affect compliance
obligations arising out of this order.

XIV.

It is further ordered, That the respondent herein shall within sixty
(60) days after service upon it of this order file with the Commission, a
report, in writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in which it
has complied with this order.

Commissioner Dole not participating by reason of absence.

i

ATTACHMENT A

PERSONAL CREDIT INSURANCE AUTHORIZATION-

YOUR LOAN (OTHER EXTENSION OF CREDIT) HAS BEEN APPROVED IN
THE AMOUNT OF .

CREDIT LIFE OR CREDIT ACCIDENT & HEALTH (DISABILITY) INSUR-
ANCE IS NOT REQUIRED IN CONNECTION WITH THIS EXTENSION OF
CREDIT TO YOU AND YOUR DECISION WITH REGARD TO THE PERSONAL
INSURANCE WILL NOT AFFECT THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF CREDIT WHICH
HASALREADY BEEN APPROVED FOR YOU.

IF YOU ELECT CREDIT INSURANCE THESE PREMIUMS WILL BE DE-
DUCTED FROM THE PROCEEDS OF YOUR LOAN AND ADDED TO THE
AMOUNT FINANCED.

Credit Life $ v (For term of transaction)
Credit A & H (Disability) $ (For term of transaction)

I have received a fully completed and executed copy of this form. I have reviewed the
net cash advance options set forth below and understand that if I choose a net cash
advance option that includes any of the insurance coverages I.am authorizing the lender to
pay the insurance premiums on my behalf. I have voluntarily chosen the following net cash
advance option:
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Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4

Net Cash Advance Net Cash Advance Net Cash Advance Net Cash Advance
Without Personal with Credit Life With Credit A & H With Credit Life

Credit Insurance Only (Disability) Only and A & H (Disa-
bility)
No. of No. of No. of No. of
Months Months Months Months -
(Borrower) (Borrower) (Borrower) (Borrower)
(Borrower) (Borrower) (Borrower) (Borrower)

(Date) (Date) (Date) (Date)

ATTACHMENT B

Name of Creditor
Address of Creditor
Dear Customer:

As part of your current loan with Guardian Loan Co., Inc,, charges were made for credit
life insurance and/or credit disability insurance.

Because it has been determined that many of our customers may not have been fully
aware of the voluntary nature of this insurance coverage at the time they purchased it, we
are offering you the opportunity to cancel your insurance coverage and receive a partial
refund of the insurance premiums based on a refund schedule which takes into account the
remaining time pertod on your loan. If you cancel this insurance, your protection will end
as of the date we receive your written notice of cancellation. :

If you desire to cancel your insurance coverage, please complete the enclosed form and
return it within two weeks in the enclosed envelope which requires no stamp. Do not
return the enclosed form if you want your credit insurance to remain in force.

“Sincerely,

ATTACHMENT C

From [Name of Borrower J:
To {Name of Creditor J:

At the time I made my loan, I did not understand that credit insurance was voluntary.
Please cancel the insurance checked below and refund to me the applicable portion of the
premium(s). I understand that in connection with any delinquent account the company
reserves the right to credit the account with such refund.

CHECK INSURANCE COVERAGE TO BE CANCELLED
() cancel my credit life insurance {list applicable

() cancel my credit disability insurance coverages )
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(NOTE: DO NOT SIGN OR RETURN THIS FORM IF YOU WANT YOUR
CREDIT INSURANCE TO REMAIN IN FORCE)

DATE

Borrower
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‘Complaint 88 F.I.C.
IN THE MATTER OF
SHINYEI COMPANY, INC, ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND WOOL PRODUCTS
LABELING ACTS

Docket C-2547. Complaint, Oct. 21, 1976 — Decision, Oct. 21, 1976

Consent order requiring a New York City importer and distributor of fabrics and’
wearing apparel, among other things to cease violating the Wool Products
Labeling Act by mislabeling products as to their wool and fiber content, and
failing to firmly affix identification tags. Further, respondents are required to
mail a copy of this order to affected customers, notifving them that the products
they purchased had been mislabeled.

Appearances

For the Commission: Jerry R. McDonald and Janies M. Cox.
For the respondents: Sencel, Patrusky & Buchsbaun, New York
City.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, and the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939, and by virtue of
the authority vested in it by said Acts, the Federal Trade Commission,
having reason to believe that Shinyei Company, Inc., a corporation, Exx-
Calibre Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc., a corporation, Yoshijiro Ochiai,
individually and as an officer of said corporations, and Peter Held,
individually and as an officer of Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc,
hereinafter sometimes referred to as respondents, have violated the
provisions of said Acts and the rules and regulations promulgated under
the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939, and it appearing to the
Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the
public interest, hereby issues its complaint stating its charges in that
respect as follows: ’

PAR. 1. Respondents Shtnyei Company, Inc., and Exx-Calibre Gentle-
men’s Apparel, Inc, are corporations organized, existing and doing
business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of New York. The
principal office and place of business of respondent Shinyei Company,
Inc., is located at 260 Madison Ave., New York, New York. The principal
office and place of business of respondent Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s
Apparel, Inc,, is located at 873 Broadway, New York, New York.

Respondent Yoshijiro Ochiai is an officer of the corporate respon-
dents. He formulates, directs and controls the acts and practices of
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respondent Shinyei Company, Inc., and participates with respondent
Peter Held in the formulation, direction and control of the acts and "
practices of respondent Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc., includ-
ing the acts and practices hereinafter set forth. His address is the same
as that of respondent Shinyei Company, Inec.

Respondent Peter Held is an officer of respondent Exx-Calibre
Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc. He participates with respondent Yoshijiro
Ochiai in the formulation, direction, and control of the acts and practices
of said corporate respondent, including the acts and practices herein-
after set forth. His address is the same as that of said corporate
respondent.

PAR. 2. Respondent Shinyei Company, Inc., is engaged in the business
of importing from the Orient and distributing in the United States
various products including wool blend men’s suits and slacks.

Respondent Exx-Calibré Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc, is a wholesale
distributor of men’s clothing imported from the Orient by respondent
Shinyei Company, Inc. Respondent Shinyei Company, Inec., owns
controlling stock of respondent Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc.

PaAR. 3. Respondents, now and for some time last past, have imported
for introduction into commerce, introduced into commerce, transported,
distributed, delivered for shipment, shipped, offered for sale, and sold in
commerece as “commerce” is defined in the Wool Products Labeling Act
of 1939, wool products as “wool product” is defined therein.

PAR. 4. Certain of said wool products were misbranded by the
respondents within the intent and meaning of Section 4(a)(1) of the
Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939 and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, in that they were falsely and deceptively
stamped, tagged, labeled, or otherwise identified with respect to the
character and amount of the constituent fibers contained therein.

Among such misbranded wool products, but not limited thereto, were
certain wool blend men’s suits and slacks stamped, tagged, labeled, or
otherwise identified by respondents as 45% reprocessed wool, 55%
polyester and 70% wool, 30% polyester whereas, in truth and in fact,
said products contained substantially different fibers and amounts of
fibers than represented.

PAR. 5. Certain of said wool products were further misbranded by
respondents in that they were not stamped, tagged, labeled or otherwise
identified as required under the provisions of Section 4(a)(2) of the Wool
Products Labeling Act of 1939 and in the manner and form as
prescribed by the rules and regulations promulgated under said Act.

Among such misbranded wool products, but not limited thereto, were
wool products, namely, wool blend men’s slacks and suits with labels on
or affixed thereto, which failed to disclose the percentage of the total
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fiber weight of the said wool products, exclusive of ornamentation not
exceeding 5 per centum of said total fiber weight, of (1) wool, (2)
reprocessed wool, (3) reused wool, (4) each fiber other than wool, when
said percentage by weight of such fiber was 5 per centum or more, and
(6) the aggregate of all other fibers.

PAR. 6. The acts and practices of respondents as set forth above were,
and are, in violation of the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939 and the
rules and regulations promulgated thereunder and constituted, and now
constitute, unfair methods of competition and unfair and deceptive acts
and practices, in commerce, under the Federal Trade Commission Act,
as amended.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
certain acts and practices of the respondents named in the caption
hereof, and the respondents having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the New York Regional Office
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and which,
if issued by the Commission, would charge respondents with violation of
the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, and the Wool Products
Labelirig Act of 1939; and

The respondents and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by the
respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid draft
of complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondents that the law has been violated as alleged in such complaint,
and waivers and other provisions as required by the Commission’s
Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and having
determined that it had reason to believe that the respondents have
violated the said Acts, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record for a
period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with the procedure
prescribed by Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission hereby issues its
complaint, makes the following jurisdictional finding, and enters the
following order:

1. Respondent Shinyei Company, Inc. and Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s
Apparel, Inc. are corporations organized, existing and doing business
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of New York. The principal
office and place of business of respondent Shinyei Company, Inc., is
located at 260 Madison Ave., New York, New York. The principal office
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and place of business of respondent Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s Apparel,
Inc,, is located at 873 Broadway, New York, New York.

Respondent Yoshijiro Ochiai is an officer of the corporate respon-
dents. He formulates, directs and controls the acts and practices of
respondent Shinyei Company, Inc., and participates with respondent
Peter Held in the formulation, direction and control of the acts and
practices of respondent Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc., and his
address is the same as that of corporate respondent Shinyei Company,
Inc.

Respondent Peter Held is an officer of respondent Exx-Calibre
Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc. He participates with respondent Yoshijiro
Ochiai in the formulation, direction and control of the acts and practices
of said corporate respondent, and his address is the same as that of said
corporate respondent.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondents, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER

It is ordered, That respondents Shinyei Company, Inc., a corporation,
Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc., a corporation, their successors
and assigns, and their officers, and Yoshijiro Ochiai, individually and as
an officer of said corporations, and Peter Held, individually and as an
officer of respondent Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s Apparel, Inc, and
respondents’ representatives, agents, and employees, directly or
through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or any other device, in
connection with the introduction, or importing for introduction, into
commerce, or the offering for sale, sale, transportation, distribution,
delivery for shipment or shipment, in commerce, of wool products, as
“commerce” and “wool product” are defined in the Wool Products
Labeling Act of 1939, do forthwith cease and desist from misbranding
such products by:

1. Falsely and deceptively stamping, tagging, labeling, or otherwise
identifying such products.

2. Failing to securely affix to or place on, each such product a stamp,
tag, label, or other means of identification showing in a clear and
conspicuous manner each element of information required to be
disclosed by Section 4(a)(2) of the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939.

It is further ovdered, That respondent Exx-Calibre Gentlemen’s
Apparel, Inc., mail a copy of this order, by registered mail, to each of its
customers that purchased the wool products which gave rise to this
complaint.

It is further ordered, That the individual respondents named herein

223-239 O - 77 - 42
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promptly notify the Commission of each change in business or
employment status, which includes discontinuance of their present
business or employment and each affiliation with a new business or
employment, for ten (10) years following the effective date of this order.
Such notice shall include respondents’ current business address and a
description of the business or employment in which they are engaged as
well as a-description of their duties and responsibilities. The expiration
of the notice provision of this paragraph shall not affect any other
obligations arising under this order.

Itis further ordered, That the respondent corporations shall forthwith
distribute a copy of this order to each of their operating divisions.

It is further ordered, That respondents notify the Commission at least
thirty - (30) days prior to any proposed change in the corporate
respondents such as dissolution, assignment, or sale resulting in the
emergence of successor corporations, the creation or dissolution of
subsidiaries or any other change in the corporations which may affect
compliance obligations arising out of the order.

It is further ordered, That respondents shall, within sixty (60) days
after service upon them of this order, file with the Commission a report
in writing setting forth in detail the manner and form in which they
have complied with the order to cease and desist contained herein.

Commissioner Dole did not participate by reason of absence.
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IN THE MATTER OF
JOSEPH CORN & SON, INC. ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND FUR PRODUCTS
LABELING ACTS

Docket C-2848. Complaint, Oct. 21, 1976 — Decision, Oct. 21, 1976

Consent order requiring a New York City manufacturer of fur products, among other
things, to cease misbranding and deceptively invoicing their fur products by
failing to set forth on labels and invoices information and disclosures mandated by
the Fur Products Labeling Act.

Appearances

For the Commission: Jerry B. McDonald.
For the respondents: Michael M. Maloney, New York Clty

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, and the Fur Products Labeling Act, and by virtue of the
authority vested in it by said Acts, the Federal Trade Commission,
having reason to believe that Joseph Corn & Son, Inc., a corporation, and
Milton Corn, individually and as an officer of said corporation, herein-
after sometimes referred to as respondents, have violated the provi-
sions of said Acts and the rules and regulations promulgated under the
Fur Products Labeling Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest,
hereby issues its complaint stating its charges in that respect as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Joseph Corn & Son, Inc. is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of New York, with its principal office and place of business
located at 141 West 28th St., New York, New York.

Respondent Milton Corn is an officer of the corporate respondent. He
formulates, directs and controls the policies, acts and practices of the
corporate respondent including the acts and practices hereinafter set
forth. His address is the same as that of the corporate respondent.

Respondents are wholesalers and retailers of fur products including
items of wearing apparel.

PAR. 2. Respondents are now and for some time last past have been
engaged in the introduction into commerce, and in the manufacture for
introduction into commerce, and in the sale, and offermg for sale in
commerce, and in the transportation and distribution in commerce, of
fur products; and have manufactured for sale, sold, offered for sale,
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transported and distributed fur products which have been made in
whole or in part of furs which have been shipped and received in
commerce as the terms “commerce,” “fur” and “fur product” are defined
in the Fur Products Labeling Act.

PAR. 3. Certain of said fur products were misbranded in that they
were not labeled as required under the provisions of Section 4(2) of the
Fur Products Labeling Act and in the manner and form prescribed by
the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. Among such misb-
randed fur products, but not limited thereto, were fur products without
labels as required by said Act.

PAR. 4. Certain of said products were misbranded in violation of the
Fur Products Labeling Act in that they were not labeled in accordance
with rules and regulations promulgated thereunder in the following
respects:

(a) The term “natural” was not used on labels to describe fur products
which were not pointed, bleached, dyed, tip-dyed, or otherwise artificial-
ly colored, in violation of Rule 19(g) of said rules and regulations.

(b) Required item numbers were not set forth on labels, in violation of
Rule 40 of said rules and regulations.

(¢) The true animal name of the fur used in such fur products was not
shown on labels in violation of Rule 5 of said rules and regulations.

(d) Required information on labels was described in abbreviated form
and not spelled out fully, in violation of Rule 4 of said rules and
regulations.

(e) Required information on labels was entered in handwriting in
violation of Rule 29 of said rules and regulations.

PAR. 5. Certain of said fur products were falsely and deceptively
invoiced by the respondents in that they were not invoiced as required
by Section 5(b)(1) of the Fur Products Labeling Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated under such act.

Among such falsely and deceptively invoiced fur products, but not
limited thereto, were fur products covered by invoices which failed to
disclose that the fur contained inthe fur products was bleached, dyed, or
otherwise artificially colored, when such was the fact.

PAR. 6. Certain of said fur products were falsely and deceptively
invoiced to imply that the fur contained therein was natural when in fact
such fur was pointed, bleached, dyed, tip-dyed, or otherwise artificially
colored, in violation of Section 5(b)(2) of the Fur Products Labeling Act.

PAR. 7. Certain of said fur products were falsely and deceptively
invoiced in violation of the Fur Products Labeling Act in that they were
not invoiced in accordance with the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder in the following respect:
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The term “natural” was not used on invoices to describe fur
products which were not pointed, bleached, dyed, tip-dyed, or
otherwise artificially colored in violation of Rule 19(g) of said rules
and regulations. '

PAR. 8. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondents as herein
alleged, are in violation of the Fur Products Labeling Act and the rules
and regulations promulgated thereunder and constituted and now
constitute unfair methods of competition and unfair and deceptive acts
and practices in commerce under the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
certain acts and practices of the respondents named in the caption
hereof, and the respondents having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the New York Regional Office
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and which,
if issued by the Commission, would charge respondents with violation of
the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, and the Fur Products
Labeling Act; and

The respondents and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by the
respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid draft
of complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondents that the law has been violated as alleged in such complaint,
and waivers and other provisions as required by the Commission’s
Rules; and '

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and having
determined that it had reason to believe that the respondents have
violated the said Acts, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record for a
period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with the procedure
prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission hereby issues its
complaint, makes the following jurisdictional findings, and enters the
following order:

1. Respondent Joseph Corn & Son, Inc,, is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State
of New York, with its office and principal place of business located at
141 West 28th St., New York, New York.

Respondent Milton Corn is an officer of said corporation. He
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formulates, directs and controls the acts, practices and policies of said
corporation and his principal office and place of business is located at
the above-stated address.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondents, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER

It is ordered, That the respondents Joseph Corn & Son, Inc, a
corporation, its successors and assigns, and its officers, and Milton Corn,
individually and as an officer of said corporation, and respondents’
representatives, agents and employees, directly or through any corpora-
tion, subsidiary, division or any other device in connection with the
introduction, or manufacture for introduction, into commerce, or the
sale, advertising or offering for sale in commerce, or the transportation
or distribution in commerce, of any fur produect; or in connection with
the manufacture for sale, sale, advertising, offering for sale, transporta-
tion or distribution of any fur product which is made in whole or in part
of fur which has been shipped and received in commerce, as the terms
“commerce,” “fur” and “fur product” are defined in the Fur Products
Labeling Act, do forthwith cease and desist from:

A. Misbranding any fur product by:

1. Failing to affix a label to such fur product showing in words and in
figures plainly legible all of the information required to be disclosed by
each of the subsections of Section 4(2) of the Fur Products Labeling Act.

2. Failing to set forth the term “natural” as part of the information
required to be disclosed on a label under the Fur Products Labeling Act
and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder to describe such
fur product which is not pointed, bleached, dyed, tip-dyed, or otherwise
artificially colored.

3. Failing to set forth on a label the item number or mark assigned
to such fur product. ,

4. Failing to set forth on a label the true animal name of the fur used
in such fur product.

5. Setting forth information required under the Fur Products
Labeling Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder in
abbreviated form on a label pertaining to such fur product.

6. Setting forth required information on a label in handwriting.

B. Falsely or deceptively invoicing fur products by:

1. Failing to furnish an invoice, as the term “invoice” is defined in
the Fur Products Labeling Act, showing in words and figures plainly
legible all the information required to be disclosed by each of the
subsections of Section 5(b)(1) of the Fur Products Labeling Act.
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2. Representing, directly or by implication, on an invoice that the fur
contained in such fur product is natural when such is pointed, bleached,
dyed, tip-dyed, or otherwise artificially colored.

3. Failing to disclose the term “natural” on invoices to describe fur
products which contain fur which has not been pointed, bleached, dyed,
tip-dyed, or otherwise artificially colored, as required by Rule 19(g) of
said rules and regulations. .

It is further ordered, That the individual respondent named herein
promptly notify the Commission of each change in business or
employment status, which includes discontinuance of his present
business or employment and each affiliation with a new business or
. employment, for ten (10) years following the effective date of this order.
Such notice shall include respondent’s current business address and a
description of the business or employment in which he is engaged as
well as a description of his duties and responsibilities. The expiration of
the notice provision of this paragraph shall not affect any other
obligations arising under this order.

It is further ordered, That respondents notify the Commission at least
thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in the corporate
respondent such as dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the
emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of
subsidiaries or any other change in the corporation which may affect
compliance obligations arising out of the order.

It 1is further ordered, That the respondent corporation shall forthwith
distribute a copy of this order to each of its operating divisions.

It is further ordered, That respondents shall, within sixty (60) days
after service upon them of this order, file with the Commission a report
in writing setting forth in detail the manner and form in which they
have complied with the order to cease and desist contained herein.

Commissioner Dole did not participate by reason of absence.
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IN THE MATTER OF

THE COCA-COLA COMPANY, ET AL.

CONSENT ORDERS, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION
OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 8824. Complaint, Nov. 20, 1970 — Decisions, Oct. 26, 1976

Consent order requiring an Atlanta, Ga., manufacturer of soft drinks and other food
products, among other things to cease failing, in contests and promotional games,
to disclose all terms, conditions and rules; to award all prizes to entries who
conform to the conditions of entitlement to a prize; and to keep adequate records
for a minimum of two years.

Consent order requiring a Westport, Conn., promotional firm, among other things to
cease failing, in contests and promotional games, to meet all of the above-
mentioned requirements, and additionally, in relation to the future conduet of skill
contests, to base them solely on matters of established, provable fact; to use such
facts as are readily available from reference materials; to disclose that skill is
involved and the reference works on which answers are based; to file questions
and answers with an independent organization prior to promotion implementa-
tion; and to make available to participants the correct answers and a list of
‘winners within sixty (60) days of judging the contest.

Appea rances

For the Commission: John J. McNally and David C. Fix.
For the respondents: White & Case, New York City; Wake, See &
Dimes, Westport, Conn.; and Weil, Gotshal & Manges, New York City.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, and
by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal Trade
Commission, having reason to believe that The Coca-Cola Company, a
corporation, and Glendinning Companies, Inc., a corporation, hereinafter
sometimes referred to as respondents Coca-Cola and Glendinning, have
violated the provisions of said Act, and it appearing to the Commission
that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest,
hereby issues its complaint stating its charges in that respect as follows:

ParRAGRAPH 1. Respondent The Coca-Cola Company is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Delaware, with its office and principal place of business
located at 515 Madison Ave, in the city of New York, State of New
York.

Respondent Glendinning Companies, Inc. is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State
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of Connecticut, with its office and principal place of business located at
One Glendinning' Place, in the city of Westport, State of Connecticut.

PAR. 2. Respondent The Coca-Cola Company directly, and through
various corporate subsidiaries, affiliates and franchisees is now, and for
some time last past has been, engaged in manufacturing, distributing,
advertising, offering for sale and selling concentrates, syrups, soft
drinks, beverages and other food products. It has production and
bottling plants and facilities in numerous American and foreign cities.
Its beverages, including those popular soft drinks sold under the trade
names “Coca-Cola” and “Tab,” are distributed and sold to a vast
segment of the general public in substantially all parts of the United
States through some 900 local bottlers. Its net sales in 1968 approximat-
ed $1,185,808,364.

PAR. 3. Respondent Glendinning Companies, Inc. is now, and for some
time last past has been, engaged in developing, manufacturing, promot-
ing, offering for sale, selling and distributing trade stimulation pro-
grams and services, and sales promotional materials including promo-
tional games and related devices used in and to induce the sale and
distribution of food, gasoline and various other products.

PAR. 4. In the course and conduct of their respective businesses,
respondent Coca-Cola and respondent Glendinning have acted separate-
ly or in concert for the purpose and with the result of bringing about the
use of a promotional game known as “Big Name Bingo” in connection
with and in order to induce the sale and distribution of “Coca-Cola” and
“Tab” to a vast segment of the general public.

The aforesaid “Big Name Bingo” promotional game utilizes “bingo”
type entry cards to which game participants are required to attach
game pieces in the appropriate spaces. The entry cards consist, in the
main, of cardboard pieces inserted into cartons of Coca-Cola and Tab.
The game pieces consist, in the main, of plastic liners inserted within the
lids or caps of bottles of said product. The said entry cards and game
pieces, together with tear sheets of advertising copy, in-store display
pieces and other promotional game materials and devices, were made
available through respondents Coca-Cola and Glendinning to bottlers
and distributors of Coca-Cola and Tab, for use in connection with and in
order to induce the sale and distribution of said products through usual
retail channels in numerous marketing areas to a vast segment of the
general public throughout the States of the United States and in the
District of Columbia.

PAR. 5. In the course and conduct of its business, respondent Coca-
Cola now causes, and for some time last past has caused, said beverages
and other food products, including Coca-Cola and Tab, to be distributed
through said production and bottling plants and facilities located in
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various States of the United States, and to be sold and distributed
through retail establishments for sale and distribution to a vast segment
of the general public throughout the United States. Respondent Coca-
Cola causes its said food products, including Coca-Cola and Tab, to be
_advertised in newspapers of general circulation published and dissemi-
nated throughout the various States of the United States, and the
District of Columbia. Respondent Coca-Cola maintains, and at all times
mentioned herein has maintained, a substantial course of trade in said
beverages and other food products, inciuding Coca-Cola and Tab, and
has advertised and distributed said food products and the aforemen-
tioned promotional games including “Big Name Bingo” and related
materials and devices, in commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the
Federal Trade Commission Act.

PAR. 6. In the course and conduct of its business, respondent
Glendinning has caused to be manufactured, sold and distributed
throughout the United States entry cards, game pieces and other
materials and devices necessary for the promotion and use of various
promotional games, including “Big Name Bingo” used in connection with
and in order to induce the sale and distribution of Coca-Cola and Tab to
a vast segment of the general public. Respondent Glendinning main-
tains, and at all times mentioned herein has maintained, a substantial
course of trade in said promotional games, materials and devices in
commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission
Act.

PAR. 7. In the course and conduct of their business, respondents have
caused advertisements to be published and disseminated in newspapers,
through in-store promotional displays, on game entry cards, and by
various other means, for the purpose of inducing and which have
induced a vast segment of the general public to purchase Coca-Cola and
Tab in order to participate in “Big Name Bingo.” Many of said
advertisements contain depictions of all or a substantial portion of the
bingo-type grid format of the game entry cards and set forth an
example of a correct or winning game piece liner to be matched up with
one of the ten “questions” or spaces on the card. Many of said
advertisements recite or paraphrase all or portions of the instructions
and rules set out on the game entry cards, and contain statements and
representations concerning the likelihood that members of the general
public would receive a stated sum by submitting a correct entry in the
“Big Name Bingo” promotional game.

Incorporated herein by reference are copies of the following: front
and reverse sides of a sample game entry card which are designated
Appendix A-1 and A-2, sample of an in-store display card designated
Appendix B, and an example of a newspaper advertisement designated
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Appendix C. The front side of the said game entry cards consist
principally of a grid of 30 circles in six columns of five each. The two
center columns comprise statements or “questions,” and the outer
columns comprise pictures of named famous persons, or “possible
answers.” Over the grid sections are set forth directions for participat-
ing in “Big Name Bingo” and on the reverse side thereof is set forth the
“Official Rules” therefor.

PAR. 8 Among and including the statements, depictions and represen-
tations set forth on said game cards heretofore designated Appendix A-
1 and A-2, and in other advertisements by respondents, as aforesaid, are
the following: ‘

PLAY BIG NAME BINGO WIN $100. Here's How You .Can Win $100. % * =

(Depiction of three bottle caps, from the inside surface of one cap, 2 liner portraying
Abraham Lincoln is being pried loose by what appears to be a knife blade).

* # % Answer the questions by glueing correct picture liners face up and clearly
visible over the appropriate question. For example, get the inside “ABRAHAM
LINCOLN" picture liner and glue it on the space marked “Freed Slaves” and you
are already playing BIG NAME BINGO. Be sure to read the official rules
carefully* * * When you have glued on as many “answers” as you can correctly,
submit your card* * * Webster’s unabridged dictionary and the Encyclopedia
Britannica will serve as reference authorities® * #,

Playing Grid, Glue correct picture liners over circles® * *”

# % #Match the correct famous faces. Look for Coca-Cola and Tab Caps with the
words “BIG NAME BINGO” on top* * *,

Official Rules * * * On the playing grid you will find 10 “questions.” Adjacent are
pictured examples of 20 possible “answers”™* * * There are no other picture liners in
the contest. Answer each question by glueing the correct picture liners face up and
clearly visible over the appropriate questions (be careful, in some instances the same
picture liner may be used to answer more than one question and certain questions
may not be answered by any of the picture liners). When you have glued on as many
“answers” as you can correctly, sign your card and send it along with your name and
address to BIG NAME BINGO * * * Westport, Connecticut* * * The decision of
the judges will be final* * *,

Certain advertisements, including that heretofore designated Appen-
dix C, set forth directions for participating in “Big Name Bingo,”
including the following:

# * *Match the faces with brief descriptions and paste the faces on the game card at
left. For each desecription, look through all 20 famous faces to see if any match
correctly. For example, get the “Abraham Lincoln” picture liner and glue it in the
space marked “Freed Slaves.” It’s that simple. Correctly completed card wins you
$100. But remember, there are 20 liners showing famous faces, and only 10
descriptions on the playing card. So play carefully. Fill in as many spaces as you can

correctlvE #
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PAR. 9. The aforesaid directions, explanations, rules, depictions and
other statements were published and disseminated by respondents so as
to interest and attract a vast segment of the general public, including a
substantial portion thereof of average sophistication and skill in
semantics, and to induce their purchase of Coca-Cola and Tab in order to
participate in said promotional game. By and through the use of the
aforesaid directions, explanations, rules, depictions, and other state-
ments, and by others of the same import and meaning not set out
specifically herein, respondents represented to the aforesaid substantial
portion of the general public, directly or by implication, that they would
give $100 to each contestant who submitted a Big Name Bingo entry
card upon which the appropriate liner was affixed in a clearly visible
manner over each space in the playing grid containing a “question” to
which the depiction on such liner constituted a correct answer according
to the cited reference authorities.

PAR. 10. In"truth and in fact, many if not all contestants from among
the aforesaid substantial portion of the general public, who submitted
Big Name Bingo entry cards upon which the correct “answers” were
affixed over the appropriate “questions,” as referred to in Paragraph
Nine hereof, did not receive $100 from respondents. Contrary to the
clear import of their directions, explanations, rules, depictions, and
other statements and representations to the substantial portion of the
general public interested and attracted thereby, as aforesaid, respon-
dents imposed a material condition or rule, substantially at variance
therewith and not disclosed to said substantial portion of the general.
public, by virtue of which more than one liner had to be affixed over
certain of the spaces in order to entitle contestants to win $100. As a
consequence thereof, a substantial number of contestants from among
the aforesaid substantial segment of the general public who had been
beguiled and induced to purchase Coca-Cola or Tab in order to
participate in said promotional game did not receive sums to which they
would have been entitled had Big Name Bingo been conducted in
accordance with the clear import, to said contestants, of respondents’
aforesaid statements and representations.

Therefore, respondents’ said statements and representations, acts
and practices, and their failure to reveal material facts to a substantial
segment of the general public and to award prizes to contestants
entitled thereto from among said segment of the general public, as set
forth in Paragraphs Eight, Nine and Ten hereof, were, and are, unfair,
false, misleading and deceptive acts and practices.

PAR. 11. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business, and at
all times mentioned herein, respondents have been, and now are, in
substantial competition, in commerce, with corporations, firms and
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individuals in the sale of syrups, concentrates, beverages and other food
products, and of trade stimulation programs and promotional games, of
the same general kind and nature as that sold by respondents.

PAR. 12. The use by respondents of the false, misleading and
deceptive statements, representations, acts and practices and their
failure to reveal material facts and to award prizes to contestants
entitled thereto, as aforesaid, has had, and now has, the capacity and
tendency to mislead a substantial portion of the general public into the
erroneous and mistaken belief that said statements and representations
were and are true and complete, and into the purchase of substantial
quantities of Coca-Cola and Tab by reason of said erroneous and
mistaken belief.

PAR. 13. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondents, including
their continuing refusal to award prizes to contestants entitled thereto,
as herein alleged, were and continue to be all to the prejudice and injury
of the public and the respondents’ competitors and constituted, and now
constitute, unfair methods of competition in commerce and unfair and
deceptive acts and practices in commerce in violation of Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act.
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Official Rules

1. Pucture liners sre available under caps of
Coca-Cola and Tab that have the words BIG
KAME BINGO printed on lop cpiclures are also
printed on the botlom of can Cartons). You may
{rade any picture kinet for 2ny other 1hat you
want by sending Ihe undesired picture hiner
Llus the name of the piclure iner you want
gether with 8 stamped, sell-addressed enve-
lop# 10 “Pwiure Liners.” P.O. Box 582, West.
port, Conneclicul 06880. Addiwonal playing
cards are alsoavailablefrom this sameaddress.
2. 0n he playing grid you will find 10 “ques-
0N jacent are pictured examples of 20
posyible "answers.” which may be obtained a5
rovided in Rufe #1. There are no other picture
iners in the contest. Answer each question by
gluing the correct picture liners face up and
clearly visible over 1he appropriate questions
{be caretul, in some inslances the same picture
{iner may be used o answer more than oae
question and cerlain questions may ot be
answered by any of the picture liners).
3. When you have glued on 83 many “snswers”
43 you can correctly, 3ign your ¢ard and send
il along with your name and address to BIG
NAME BINGO, P. 0. Box 582, Westporl. Con-
neclicut 06380, for ventication ang awarding of
tize 1l you are s winner. 00 NOT SEND METAL
OTTLE CAPS IN THE MASL—only the liners
themselves. Enfries must be postmarked no
Later than May 31, 1969. Winners will be noti-
d by mail about June 20. 1969. Limit one
prize 1o 3 family,
f your entry is judged incorrect, you will nol
be notified uniess you enclose a stamped, seff-
addressed envelope with your entry. You will
be Aotilied lollowing the oficial closing date of
the contest. No other corcespondence will be
enlered into regarding this contest.

4. Players submitting a card which is judged °

exctly correct will be awarded $100.00. The

decision of the judges wdl de final 3nd entry

n contest signdlies Ihe agreement of the

1 to abide by the judges’ decision. All
enlries become the property of The Coca-Cola
Company and none will be returned.

. 5. £acept for incidental heip from family sad
friends, entries must be whoily the work of the
Person in whose name the eniry is submitted,
and will be disqualified for prolessional or
compensaled heip. The Coca-Cola Company
teserves the cight to terminate this contest at
any time. Contest materials are void and may
b Fejected st not obtained through legitimate
channels, or if any part i iHegible, mutilated.
smeared or mpered with. Mo lacsimiles are
ehigible. Yoid where cestricted by law. Appir-
cable lsxes ate the 1eszonsibilily of winners.
Promotion ends May 31,1969,

6. 0tfer open o all US. residents excepl
amployees (andtheis tamilies) of The Coca-Cofa
Company. its botilers, marketing agencies and
Parbes engaged in the development. produclion
and disindotion of contest malesials.
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APPENBIX A~2

Westport, Connecticut 06880

[Ml!l lo: BIG NAME BINGO, P.0. Box S!j

63961 ‘1€ AYW :31vd DNISOTD
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PLAY
BIG NAME BINGO
Match the correct famous
faces. Look for Coca-Cola and
‘Tab caps with the words
“BIG NAME BINGO" on top.
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